
  1 November  2018

TO:    Bainbridge Island Municipal Court 

FROM: Richard Lee Rynearson III 
  217 Shepard Way 
  Bainbridge Island, WA 98110 

SUBJECT: Request leave to file letter as Amicus Curiae in support of Houston Wade (46-18 
& 47-18) 

 As an individual against whom an unconstitutional protection order was granted by the 

Bainbridge Island Municipal Court on the basis of First Amendment protected speech, 

subsequently reversed and vacated by the Kitsap Superior Court, Moriwaki v. Rynearson, I have 

an interest in how this Court applies the law regarding the First Amendment in the context of 

protection orders.  I take no position regarding the facts in these cases or the question whether 

any speech by Houston Wade falls into unprotected categories, but I respectfully request leave to 

file this letter regarding the legal contours of when speech falls into unprotected categories.  I 

urge this court to acknowledge that a protection order may not be granted based upon content of 

respondent’s speech outside narrow, historically recognized categories of unprotected speech 

(such as defamation and true threats).   

 Leaving aside unprotected speech like defamation and threats, Mr. Wade has the right 

under the First Amendment to the federal Constitution and Article 1, Section 5 of the Washington 

Constitution to engage in speech critical of others to third parties or to the public.  See, e.g., State 

v. Noah, 103 Wn. App. 29, 34-35, 38-39 (Div. I 2000) (concluding that standing with signs 

outside a therapist’s office with slogans like “David Calof, Mr. Windbag! Psychotherapist” and 

“David Calof Voice of Hatred and Revenge” was “protected speech and picketing” and “cannot 












